

KRIS NELSON COMMUNITY-BASED RESEARCH PROGRAM

. . .a program of the Center for Urban and Regional Affairs (CURA)

MUNICIPAL LAND TRUSTS – A FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR ADOPTION BY CITY OF SAINT PAUL

Prepared in partnership with Common Grounds USA – Minnesota

Prepared by

Anindya Kumar Panda Research Assistant University of Minnesota

SUMMER 2019

KNCBR Report # 1451



The Kris Nelson Community-Based Research Program is coordinated by the Center for Urban and Regional Affairs (CURA) at the University of Minnesota, and is supported by funding from the McKnight Foundation.

This is a publication of the Center for Urban and Regional Affairs (CURA), which connects the resources of the University of Minnesota with the interests and needs of urban communities and the region for the benefit of all. CURA pursues its urban and regional mission by facilitating and supporting connections between state and local governments, neighborhoods, and nonprofit organizations, and relevant resources at the University, including faculty and students from appropriate campuses, colleges, centers or departments. The content of this report is the responsibility of the author and is not necessarily endorsed by the Kris Nelson Community-Based Research Program, CURA or the University of Minnesota

© 2019 by The Regents of the University of Minnesota.



This work is licensed under the Creative Commons Attribution---NonCommercial-ShareAlike 3.0 Unported License. To view a copy of this license, visit http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc-sa/3.0/

or send a letter to Creative Commons, 444 Castro Street, Suite 900, Mountain View, California, 94041, USA. Any reproduction, distribution, or derivative use of this work under this license must be accompanied by the following attribution: "© The Regents of the University of Minnesota. Reproduced with permission of the University of Minnesota's Center for Urban and Regional Affairs (CURA)." Any derivative use must also be licensed under the same terms. For permissions beyond the scope of this license, contact the CURA editor.

This publication may be available in alternate formats upon request.

Center for Urban and Regional Affairs (CURA)
University of Minnesota 330 HHH Center
301—19th Avenue South
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55455
Phone: (612) 625-1551

E-mail: cura@umn.edu
Web site: http://www.cura.umn.edu

The University of Minnesota is committed to the policy that all persons shall have equal access to its programs, facilities, and employment without regard to race, color, creed, religion, national origin, sex, age, marital status, disability, public assistance status, veteran status, or sexual orientation.

Table of Contents

Introduction	4
Section I: Sustainability of the Model	6
Section II: OPTIONS FOR EXPANDING AN mlt	8
Initiation by Home Buyer	8
Deed Restrictions	8
Routine Sales by the City	8
Acquisition of Defunct Golf Courses or Buildings	9
Properties in Loan Foreclosure	9
Tax Forfeited Land	10
SECTION III: Form of Governance	11
The Community Land Trust Model	11
St. Paul Public Housing Authority Model (SPPHA)	11
The Housing & Redevelopment Authority (HRA)	11
Odisha Urban Infrastructure Development Fund (OUIDF)	11
SECTION IV: Legal Framework Necessary	13
Provisions for creation of an MLT	13
Anticipated liability issues	13
Conclusion	14
APPENDIX I	15
Calculations to check for sustainability of the MLT model	15
APPENDIX II	21
Detailed calculations FOR Inspiring Commmunities Sites	21
APPENDIX III	24
Detailed calculations of Tax FORfeited model	24
Rihliography	25

INTRODUCTION

In the past decade, Saint Paul, MN first struggled with a high foreclosure rate and then an increasing lack of housing affordability. In response to these issues, the Minnesota Chapter of Common Ground USA (CGU) is exploring implementation of a municipal land trust (MLT) in Saint Paul. An MLT is similar to the concept of a community land trust (CLT) but is explicitly operated by the local government. As with a CLT, homebuyers would be responsible for financing the improvements on the property (i.e. usually the building) with a conventional mortgage but would pay land rent to the municipality in lieu of property taxes.

This can be arranged in various ways, such as:

- The municipality acquires and retains the land title for homes in the trust; or
- The municipality provides funds to homeowners in exchange for a deed restriction being placed on the property obligating land rent payments in lieu of property taxes.

Land rent is typically about 6percent of a property's land value (i.e. what the land would sell for) and increases 2percent annually on average. CGU proposes that, because land's rental value is created by the surrounding community and, thus, should be shared equally, increasing land rent can be used to provide an equal land rent credit to homeowners. A hypothetical land rent credit of \$190 per year is used throughout this report.

Reasons that CGU gives for a city to adopt an MLT, include:

Reducing foreclosures.

Because the prices of the land value portion of properties are more volatile than those of the building portion, financing only the building results in reduced foreclosures. Studies show that CLT homes have lower foreclosure rates than homes with conventional mortgages.

Allowing communities to benefit from land values.

When land values increase, it is because the community in which the land is located has added value to the land. MLTs reimburse the community for increased land values rather than allowing land speculators and banks to profit from buying and selling the land. They also help reduce the amount of public funding that is paid (e.g. through vouchers, tax credits, etc.) for land, which is a gift of nature.

Protecting vulnerable communities from displacement.

An MLT protects against displacement pressures by providing the opportunity for low-income households to purchase homes and by providing an equal rent credit from increasing land rent. Also, an MLT could give the City more democratic control over future land uses.

The CLT model creates limited equity interests because the homeowners own the structure but not the land. As the homeowners are entitled to only a fraction of appreciation in the property at the time of

resale, the price remains affordable for next homebuyer, keeping the property indefinitely affordable. This helps to create perpetually affordable home ownership for low- and moderate- income households. Despite the conceptual appeal of perpetual affordability, CLTs' scales of operations have been very limited and accounts for a small fraction of the affordable housing in the United States (Ingram & Hong, 2007).

CGU's MLT proposal incorporates elements of the CLT model (e.g. scattered sites, limited equity, etc.), but also borrows from other "commons" approaches to land use, such land rent communities (e.g. Arden, DE and Fairhope, AL) and tribal governments, which collect rent for the individualized use of tribal land and which make equal payments from tribal revenues to tribal members (called "per caps").

In the Spring of 2018, CURA researcher Gretchen Buechler conducted a first stage of research of this MLT proposal. Some of the key findings of the first phase of study are –

- MLTs could potentially be eligible for tax exemption based on Minnesota Statute 469.040. However, a legal advice on this should be sought.
- The city could issue bonds to finance the initial capital requirements for the MLT. The type of bonds could include general obligation bonds or revenue bonds or general obligation revenue bonds.

Building on the findings of first phase of the study, CGU applied for funding under CURA's Kris Nelson Community Based Research Program for advancing the study on MLTs during the summer of 2019. During the second phase of the study, CGU aims to explore the feasibility of implementing an MLT by the City of Saint Paul.

While there is much to explore about MLTs, this report focuses on gathering information on the below points -

- I. Making an MLT self-sustainable
- II. Potential models for creating and scaling up of MLTs
- III. The various governance models that could be useful for the MLT.
- IV. Understanding the legal framework needed for establishing and operating an MLT.

Officials from the city, county & the Public Housing Authority were interviewed during the period May 2019 to July 2019 to explore the aforementioned areas. The findings related to each of the research areas has been structured into separate sections in this report.

SECTION I: SUSTAINABILITY OF THE MODEL

This section checks for the sustainability of the MLT model given that the MLT would be paying the property taxes for the homes out of the land rent that is collected by the MLT. As the model would be open to properties listed at various market values, the feasibility of the model is checked by considering properties listed at various percentiles of estimated market value.

The properties for Saint Paul were filtered from the Parcel Data 2017 of Ramsey County. Then the properties listed at various percentiles of estimated market value were chosen at random. The feasibility check considered of acquiring properties listed at 90th percentile, 85th percentile, 80th percentile, 75th percentile, 60th percentile, 50th percentile, 30th percentile and 10th percentile. The feasibility model considers acquisition of 15 properties from each of the aforementioned categories by the proposed MLT. The land costs of these 120 properties is assumed to be extended by the City as a form of equity.

Once a property for a certain percentile of market value is considered, the average land value and the average building value is calculated for that particular percentile, by taking into account all the properties listed at that particular market value For example, the 90th percentile of estimated market value for properties in Saint Paul in 2017 was USD 358,500. There were 4 properties in Saint Paul that was valued at USD 358,500. So, to check for the feasibility of the model, average land value and average building value of all these four properties is calculated, which is USD 122,825 and USD 235,675 respectively. Similarly, the average tax payable by these properties during 2017 was recorded at USD 5,802.

A comparison was drawn between the conventional method of taxing the properties and the MLT model which proposes to recover land rent at 6 percent per annum for properties at all the aforementioned percentiles of estimated market value. It shows that as we move to a higher percentile of market value the proposed MLT would help generate more in land rents, as compared to what is being recovered currently in property taxes.

A property listed at 30th percentile of estimated market value was generating USD 1,382 annually in taxes. It would however generate only USD 723 in land rent in the proposed MLT model, which is USD 659 less than the conventional model of taxation - that considers both land and market value for taxation. However, as we consider a property listed at the 90th percentile of estimated market value, it is noticed that the MLT model could generate USD 1,568 more in land rent as compared to the conventional mode of taxation. The average tax for a property listed at 90th percentile of market value is USD 5,802 while it could generate USD 7,370 in land rent under the proposed MLT model.

It is important to note that the cost of homeownership would be brought down for properties listed at all percentiles of estimated market value by the proposed MLT. The annual cost of home-ownership is reduced by USD 5,066 on an average for the 120 properties considered in the MLT. In addition to that, as people residing in properties with lower estimated market value would now be paying less in taxes as

compared to people living in properties with higher estimated market value, the MLT model reflects the properties of a progressive taxation model – wherein the poor pay less and the rich pay more.

The feasibility model assumes that the cost of municipal services is equal to the current taxes being generated by the properties. The MLT model also explores to give a rental credit of USD 190 to every member of the MLT which appreciates at 0.3 percent per annum. Similarly, the land rent for properties is considered to appreciate at 2 percent per annum.

The MLT model which proposes to start with 120 properties can help generate USD 509,305 in land rents in the first year. The cost of municipal services for these 120 properties is USD 411,585 and that of land rent credit is calculated at USD 19,950. In total, the surplus earned in revenues at the end of first year is estimated to cross USD 77,000.

A detailed calculation is shared in Appendix I.

SECTION II: OPTIONS FOR EXPANDING AN MLT

This section explores various options for how the proposed MLT could incorporate homes into the trust and help in scaling up the supply of long-term affordable housing in Saint Paul.

Initiation by Home Buyer

Having a home buyer initiate the inclusion of a home into the MLT is one possible approach for expansion. The recently released report "Land For The Many" proposes an entity called a Common Ground Trust (CGT) in which home buyers approach the CGT when they want to buy a property. While people are required to pay for the value of the building, the underlying land is bought by the CGT. The CGT leases the land to people, who become members of the CGT upon signing of the land lease agreement, granting them exclusive rights for use of land in return of paying a land rent. At the time of moving out of the property, the members are to sell the improvements on the land, while the CGT would retain the title to the land.

Deed Restrictions

A second approach for adding homes to an MLT would apply to properties to which the City of Saint Paul extends financial assistance. In exchange for such City assistance, a deed restriction could be placed on the property that obligates land rent payments to the MLT in lieu of property taxes.

Routine Sales by the City

The City of Saint Paul routinely sells properties under various programs and these properties could become part of the MLT simply by having the City retain the land title for the properties but allowing buyers to have title to any buildings on the properties. For this approach, the report studies the properties that received assistance under the Inspiring Communities program of the City of Saint Paul during the year 2018. Seventeen vacant lots were sold by the City of Saint Paul in the year 2018 under the Inspiring Communities program. Out of the seventeen properties, eight were chosen at random to test for the model.

Market value of the eight short-listed properties were derived from the Ramsey County website to check for the revenue potential of the MLT model. It is proposed that instead of selling of these properties, the City could explore transferring these properties to the MLT which would charge a land rent of 6percent per annum of the land value.

It was noticed that all the properties listed under this program are at present tax exempted. It is assumed that had these properties being generating taxes as on date, it would have been at a rate of 2% per annum of the total market value. The MLT model would help generate additional USD 8,696 per annum in revenue for the City as compared to the conventional method of taxing properties. A detailed calculation is shared in *Appendix II*.

Acquisition of Defunct Golf Courses or Buildings

Another approach for expanding the MLT would involve closed down golf courses, city owned buildings or similar properties that the City proposes to sell. The City could explore transferring the rights to such properties to the MLT, which would then lease the land portion of these properties out while home buyers would acquire title to any structures on the site.

The report considers the case of Hillcrest Golf Course in Saint Paul which closed down in 2017 and was purchased by the Saint Paul Port Development Authority (SPPDA) for USD 10 million ("Ford site but without the tax subsidy," 2019). It is understood that the SPPDA plans to develop the defunct golf course and then sell it. The SPPDA expects an initial development cost of USD 26.5 million including USD 2.5 million for environmental clean-up ("Ford site but without the tax subsidy," 2019).

The City has approved a USD 10 million in general obligation bonds to cover the purchase cost. The repayment is estimated at approximately USD 750,000 per year over a span of 25 years ("Ford site but without the tax subsidy," 2019). The SPPDA plans to levy an additional USD 5 per year in taxes for a median-value home to help finance the development ("Ford site but without the tax subsidy," 2019). The remaining cost, including infrastructure, green space and environmental clean-up, is to be financed by land sales, grants and assessments.

The mechanism of developing these properties and selling it off to the market in a way helps boost the land prices. As land continues to appreciate at a faster rate, the houses lose their affordability tag. In order to check the appreciating land value, it is proposed that this land be transferred to the MLT. The MLT would then lease out the land to buyers, who would be responsible for the cost of improvements on these properties. Considering the City invested USD 10 million to buy the land, it can be estimated that if the land is transferred to the MLT, it would help generate USD 50,000 per month in land rent. While the City could continue to charge USD 5 per year in taxes for a median-value home, instead of revenue from sale of land, the city could make use of the land rent of USD 50,000 per month recovered collectively from the residents of houses developed on this property. While sale of land could help generate a one-time revenue, the ongoing land rents could be a perpetual source of revenue and help keeping these properties affordable in the long run.

Properties in Loan Foreclosure

This approach aims at providing an alternative for loan foreclosure. This involves identifying homeowners who are at risk of a foreclosure and approaching them for purchase of their property. Once the property is purchased by the MLT, it could retain the title to the land and sell back the improvements on the land to the homeowner, thus allowing the homeowner to continue to stay in the property and avoiding loan foreclosure.

The report just identifies this approach as a possibility in theory and has not explored how it would function in reality. It is assumed that once these properties that are at the risk of foreclosure are added to the MLT, it would help grow its base and generate revenues in the form of land rent. Further, as the

cost of the original homeowner is now reduced to only the cost of improvements, the monthly costs for homeownership is reduced, helping to avoid loan foreclosure.

Tax Forfeited Land

The City could explore buying tax-forfeited properties and transferring its ownership to the MLT. Once a property is transferred to the MLT, it could retain the title to the land then lease it out to potential homebuyers. The home-buyers would then have exclusive rights for development on this land in return for paying land rent to the MLT.

The report studies the details of the tax-forfeited property 486 Victoria Street S for the model. The said property has a market value of USD 92,000 which was acquired by the Housing & Redevelopment Authority (HRA) for 25% of its market value, which is USD 23,000 plus maintenance and recording fees. The property was then transferred to a housing developer for the cost that the HRA paid to Ramsey County. Now, if the property was transferred to the MLT, it would help in generation of USD 1,344 annually in land rent. Further, as the home-buyer would just be responsible for the cost of financing the improvements on the land, the monthly home-ownership cost would be brought down from USD 532 to USD 375. This would help the home-buyer reap the benefits of the investments of the City for a longer period, as compared to the current practice of selling the rights to the property to potential home-buyers.

A detailed calculation is shared in Appendix III.

SECTION III: FORM OF GOVERNANCE

In this section various types of governance models that the MLT can adopt are explored. Conducting a literature review to study similar models and interviewing officials from St. Paul Public Housing Authority and City of Saint Paul helped gain some useful insight in this regard.

Four models were identified that could potentially be explored for adoption by the MLT -

The Community Land Trust Model

The CLT model is considered to be most effective when it comes to maintaining long term affordability as compared to other methods. This is primarily because of its governance model that ensures that land owned by CLTs do not revert to market prices. The CLT board typically includes one-third leaseholders or occupants, one-third community representatives who are members of the CLT but not leaseholders and the other one-third could be government officials or officials of any other non-profit organization who have stakes in the CLT (Institute for Community Economics [ICE] 2002) cited in (Ingram & Hong, 2007). This style of governance ensures that the incentive to sell land for financial gains is restricted to only one-third of the members, while the rest two-thirds are committed to maintaining long-term affordability.

St. Paul Public Housing Authority Model (SPPHA)

As the MLT is being explored as a wholly owned public entity, a governance model similar to SPPHA could be explored for the MLT. The SPPHA is governed by its Board of Commissioners. As on date, the SPPHA board has seven commissioners, who are appointed by the Mayor of Saint Paul and then subsequently approved by the City Council ("Public Housing Agency, Saint Paul—Organizational Structure," 2019). Out of the seven commissioners appointed, two commissioners represent the public housing residents. The board then appoints a team of senior staff members and legal advisories who help in the day to day functioning of SPPHA.

The Housing & Redevelopment Authority (HRA)

The MLT could also explore adopting a governance structure similar to the HRA. The HRA is headed by the Executive Director of the Board of Members of HRA, who reports to the Mayor of Saint Paul. The board members are appointed by the Mayor and then subsequently approved by the City Council, similar to that of SPPHA. The staffing requirements of HRA is however fulfilled by the Planning & Economic Development department of the City of Saint Paul. In this model, the MLT would not have any representation from the residents or members of the MLT as is the case with models of CLT & SPPHA.

Odisha Urban Infrastructure Development Fund (OUIDF)

OUIDF is a wholly owned infrastructure development fund of the Government of Odisha – a state in India, which is headed by the Chief Secretary of the State. The Chief Secretary is the head of all administrative staff in the State and reports directly to the Chief Minister of the State. The fund is created under the

Housing & Urban Development (H&UD) department of the state and aims at accelerating infrastructure development within the state of India.

OUIDF works towards securing funds from various multilateral and bilateral funding agencies e.g. World Bank, Asian Development Bank, KfW etc. and extends financial support to the Urban Local Bodies & Development Authorities in implementing projects related to Affordable Housing, Water Supply & Sanitation, Solid Waste Management amongst other urban infrastructure projects.

Special Secretary, H&UD who is a senior bureaucrat within the H&UD department is the Chief Executive Officer and is responsible for day to day decision making of OUIDF. He reports to the Board of Directors, which comprises of the Chief Secretary as the Chairman of the Board, Development Commissioner of the State, Principal Secretary - H&UD, Principal Secretary - Finance Department, Chairman-cum-Managing Director - Industrial Development Corporation of Odisha, two independent directors and one representative from the Government of India.

Taking the governance model of OUIDF into consideration, the MLT could be headed by the Mayor of the City who could then appoint a Chief Executive Officer to look into the day to day affairs of the MLT. The board of directors of MLT could involve the administrative heads from the finance department and the planning & economic development department of the City of Saint Paul, two independent directors or housing specialists and a spot to be filled in by the State of Minnesota or Ramsey County. This would help bring in multidisciplinary ideas at the time of decision making, a representative of the state or county could help facilitate things wherein coordination with the state or county is required.

The MLT could then appoint a Project Development Agency (PDA) by a transparent tendering process, who would be responsible to facilitate day to day functioning of the MLT. The PDA would report directly to the Chief Executive Officer of the MLT and would have to achieve performance milestones for securing its compensation.

SECTION IV: LEGAL FRAMEWORK NECESSARY

To implement the concept of MLT one needs to understand the legal framework which would make it a reality. Two research questions were identified for this topic -1. What would it take to create an MLT? & 2. What liability issues exist for an MLT?

Provisions for creation of an MLT

Preliminary understanding of the process suggests that the HRA would have the powers to create an MLT. The below clause from an HRA resolution passed when CLT guidelines were adopted by HRA during May 2019 was of particular interest in this regard -

"WHEREAS, the HRA has the power to engage in development or redevelopment activities under Minnesota law and the HRA is authorized to engage in activities relating to (a) housing projects and development, (b) removal and prevention of the spread of conditions of blight or deterioration, (c) bringing substandard buildings and improvements into compliance with public standards, (d) disposition of land for private redevelopment, and (e) improving the tax base and the financial stability of the community, and to engage in the aforementioned activities when these needs cannot be met through reliance solely upon private initiative and which can also be undertaken in targeted neighborhoods; and is authorized to create redevelopment projects as defined in Minn Stat Section 469.002, Subd. 14;"

It seems like the HRA does enjoy powers to take steps for implementation of an MLT, as it could accelerate the stock of long-term affordable housing for Saint Paul. However, this is just a basic understanding of the clause and not a legal interpretation.

Anticipated liability issues

Non-payment of utility charges or taxes, bankruptcy of the lessee, provision for leasehold financing for the lessee, lien being created on the property, adherence to building codes prescribed by the City & the State and ensuring a valid insurance for the improvements on the land are some of topics that could give rise to liability issues for the MLT. The liability risks anticipated for the MLT are similar to ones faced by the CLTs. It is understood that the interests of the MLT can be secured by ensuring valid clauses related to these anticipated liabilities are incorporated in the land lease agreement as is done by CLTs. The lease agreement of University of Minnesota (UMN) used for leasing properties located in the University Grove area provides an example on how UMN - which is the lessor of the property, has detailed out the risks associated with leasing of land and entered valid provisions to secures it's liability. The lease agreement can be accessed using the link - https://policy.umn.edu/content/contracts/grove-lease-university-landlord .

It is suggested that a separate study be carried out to understand the aforementioned research questions in detail. It is further advised that this study be carried out by a team of law students who could provide a better understanding of the various statutes of the State of Minnesota that could help create an MLT and interpret the legal validity of the provisions incorporated in the lease agreement of UMN.

CONCLUSION

The concept of MLT holds promise for the City of Saint Paul. While the City has been partnering with CLTs, Land Banks and organizations like Twin Cities Habitat, to help in creation of long-term affordable housing in Saint Paul, a lot is yet to be done.

An MLT would not compete with a CLT but would complement the efforts of a CLT. CLTs only manage to provide a small fraction of the affordable housing in United States, and it is no different in Saint Paul. Little analysis has been done to assess the reasons for limited success of the CLT model. Lack of commitments to restricted equity form of ownership, combined with inadequate funding and staff, may account for the modest success of the CLT model to date(Ingram & Hong, 2007).

However, the proposed MLT could help mitigate the problems of inadequate funding and staff, when controlled directly by the City. The sustainability section of this report does show that collecting land rent would be sufficient for the MLT to recover its cost, while extending a land rent credit to each and every member of the MLT.

APPENDIX I CALCULATIONS TO CHECK FOR SUSTAINABILITY OF THE MLT MODEL

Assumptions -

Land Rent Rate Equal Land Rent Credit	6% \$190	p.a. Year 1
Other Annual Homeowner Cost	\$1,200	
Buyer's Loan Details -		
Down-payment	20%	
Rate of Interest	4.50%	p.a.
Tenor	30	years
Properties @ 100 percentile	0	
Properties @ 90 percentile	15	
Properties @ 85 percentile	15	
Properties @ 80 percentile	15	
Properties @ 75 percentile	15	
Properties @ 60 percentile	15	
Properties @ 50 percentile	15	
Properties @ 30 percentile	15	
Properties @ 10 percentile	15	
City's Financing Details		
Investment Requirements	\$8,488,422	Year 0
Land Rent	\$509,305	Year 1
Municipal Service Cost	\$411,585	p.a.
Debt	0%	
Equity	100%	
Rate of Interest	2%	
Repayment Period	15	years
Increase in Land Rent	2%	p.a.
Increase in Service Cost	1.5%	p.a.
Increase in Rent Credit	0.3%	p.a.
Subsidy on Land for Affordable		
Housing	0	

		Avg. Land	Avg. Building		Tax to EMV
	EMV	Value	Value	Avg. Tax	Ratio
Median	\$156,800	\$26,553	\$130,248	\$2,518	1.61%
90th Percentile	\$358,500	\$122,825	\$235,675	\$5,802	1.62%
85th Percentile	\$302,200	\$146,357	\$155,843	\$4,932	1.63%
80th Percentile	\$264,700	\$99,853	\$164,847	\$4,387	1.66%
75th Percentile	\$234,400	\$97,317	\$137,083	\$3,662	1.56%
70th Percentile	\$210,600	\$50,291	\$160,309	\$3,407	1.62%
65th Percentile	\$191,600	\$52,255	\$139,345	\$3,112	1.62%
60th Percentile	\$177,400	\$40,244	\$137,156	\$2,815	1.59%
30th Percentile	\$127,000	\$20,704	\$106,296	\$1,941	1.53%
10th Percentile	\$84,100	\$12,043	\$72,057	\$1,382	1.64%

Source: Parcel Data 2017

90th Percentile

	Conventional	MLT	
Cost to City	\$0	\$122,825	
Cost to Buyer	\$358,500	\$235,675	
Estimated Annual			
Mortgage Payment	\$17,438	\$11,464	
Annual Tax / Land			
Rent	\$5,802	\$7,370	\$1,568
Land Rent Credit	0	\$190	
Annual Cost to			
Homeowner	\$381,740	\$254,318	
Monthly Cost to			
Homeowner	\$31,811.63	\$21,193.18	\$10,618.45

	Conventional	MLT	
Cost to City	0	\$146,357	
Cost to Buyer	\$302,200	\$155,843	
Estimated Annual			
Mortgage Payment	\$14,700	\$7,580	
Annual Tax / Land			
Rent	\$4,932	\$8,781	\$3,849

Land Rent Credit	0	\$190	
Annual Cost to			
Homeowner	\$321,832	\$172,015	
Monthly Cost to			
Homeowner	\$26,819.30	\$14,334.56	\$12,484.73

80th Percentile

	Conventional	MLT	
Cost to City	0	\$99,853	
Cost to Buyer	\$264,700	\$164,847	
Estimated Annual			
Mortgage Payment	\$12,875	\$8,018	
Annual Tax / Land			
Rent	\$4,387	\$5,991	\$1,604
Land Rent Credit	0	\$190	
Annual Cost to			
Homeowner	\$281,963	\$178,667	
Monthly Cost to			
Homeowner	\$23,496.88	\$14,888.89	\$8,607.99

	Conventional	MLT	
Cost to City	0	\$97,317	
Cost to Buyer	\$137,083	\$137,083	
Estimated Annual			
Mortgage Payment	\$6,668	\$6,668	
Annual Tax / Land			
Rent	\$3,662	\$5,839	\$2,2
Land Rent Credit	0	\$190	
Annual Cost to			
Homeowner	\$147,414	\$149,400	
Monthly Cost to			
Homeowner	\$12,284.47	\$12,450.03	-\$165

60th Percentile

	Conventional	MLT	
Cost to City	0	\$40,244	
Cost to Buyer	\$177,400	\$137,156	
Estimated Annual			
Mortgage Payment	\$8,629	\$6,672	
Annual Tax / Land			
Rent	\$2,815	\$2,415	(\$401)
Land Rent Credit	0	\$190	
Annual Cost to			
Homeowner	\$188,844	\$146,052	
Monthly Cost to			
Homeowner	\$15,737.04	\$12,171.01	\$3,566.03

50th Percentile

	Conventional	MLT	
Cost to City	0	\$26,553	
Cost to Buyer	\$156,800	\$130,248	
Estimated Annual			
Mortgage Payment	\$7,627	\$6,335	
Annual Tax / Land			
Rent	\$2,518	\$1,593	(\$925)
Land Rent Credit	0	\$190	
Annual Cost to			
Homeowner	\$166,945	\$137,986	
Monthly Cost to			
Homeowner	\$13,912.12	\$11,498.84	\$2,413.28

	Conventional	MLT
Cost to City	0	\$20,704
Cost to Buyer	\$127,000	\$106,296
Estimated Annual		
Mortgage Payment	\$6,178	\$5,170

Annual Tax / Land			
Rent	\$1,941	\$1,242	(\$698)
Land Rent Credit	0	\$190	
Annual Cost to			
Homeowner	\$135,118	\$112,519	
Monthly Cost to			
Homeowner	\$11,259.85	\$9,376.58	\$1,883.27

	Conventional	MLT	
Cost to City	0	\$12,043	
Cost to Buyer	\$84,100	\$72,057	
Estimated Annual			
Mortgage Payment	\$4,091	\$3,505	
Annual Tax / Land			
Rent	\$1,382	\$723	(\$659)
Land Rent Credit	0	\$190	
Annual Cost to			
Homeowner	\$89,572	\$76,095	
Monthly Cost to			
Homeowner	\$7,464.36	\$6,341.23	\$1,123.14